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“ VOID PRECEDENT™ has al-

most become an axiom in

these super-modern times
when men pride themselves on orig-
tnating, but emulation 1&g an incal-
enlabla spur in the accomplishment
of Ieasting deeds In this respect
Fortiland i= extremsly fortunate in
having a fire department whose mom
bers havae a Iasting history of fow
who have failed in time of need.

Exiomples Inonnomerable exist in the

annals of the city fire-fightera of
comrades who have fought the last
battla wholehaartedly and have given
their sl in the service which Is so
exncting. From the immortal Dave
Campbell down the list of men whose
unsplotched escutcheons adorn Lthe
rolls of the “departed while on duty”
Yist of the Fortland department in-
epiration exists that cannot be Ig-
nored. In addition to this there is
tho liberal laaven of old members who
preserve vividly for newcomers the
lepends and duties of the service as
handed down from one goneration of
men to the othar.

Priceless Helies Preserveds

Up on Portland “Helghts in station
15 are preserved a great number of
priceless relics of the brave old days
of the Portland foree, some of them
dating way back to the first times
of the organization. The William
Jeffers hand pump that came through
the lsthmus of Panama Iin 1860 and
went into service with old Columbia
Threes at 246 Washington streel 1s
there. This engine, & masterplecs of
the mechanical art of those days, is
in & perfect stote of preservation and
ig lovingly guarded by Captain W. H.
Carrington, the oldest man In point
of continuous service in the depart-
meni today and a member of old FPro-
tection Four.

What an eye-opening revelation it
would be if some of the old boys
who tugged at the ropes in the old
days and "manned the brakes and
gave way with 4 will” on old Colum-

bin could

return to earth once more
and just takKe the old pump out to
answer an alarm, instead of Cap

Carrington and hia rose-festival prize-
winners. What a sight it would be
for the sedate residents of the heights
could the old alarm bell that lles In
the back of the engine house peal out
the call and the red flannel shirted
boys of old with their hip-boots and

helmets scurry Lo answer, shouting
echoing instructilons through their
brass and silver trumpeta. Captain,

Alex Dodge was the first skipper of
the Ceolumbia crew with W. B, Clark
and Hamilton Boyd =as assistants,
They had 950 feet of hose and their
Jeffers side stroke engine was the
crack piece of machinery of its kina
in the city. Of the old volunteers
who first worked on the engine kept
in the heights house none are alive
today, though such men as Thomas
G. Young, B. ¥. Goodwin, A. B. Bran-
nan, Adam Zorn, Levi Knott and
Charles Logus have left their mark
in tha city of today.

First Engine Has History.

Cap. Carrington's house seems to
be the center of the city for the care
of the sigmnificant mementoes that
romain to recall the tale of the de-
velopment of the city department.
All the souvenirs there have great
historical wvalue. For instance, the
full story of the Jeffers engine wonld
not be complete were It not stated
that it went to Fendleton for duty
in 1883 after serving its perlod of
usefulness here and after being forced
to give way to one of the stcamers
that came at that time, and that its
history was finally completed when
it was repurchased by the ecity of
FPortland a few years ago to be kept
as a part-of the civie souvenir col-
Jection. Also in this house is the first
steamer to come to Lhe city, a Silsby
rotary engine of the third class that
arrived in 1868, which was immediate-
Iy put into service and which pre-
saged the passing out of the wvelun-
teer departments, as the new ap-
piratus became too unmanageable for
them. It was all right for men to
serve as draught ianimals when the
machines only weighed soma 1400
pounds, but when they began to get
into several tonm it was impossible
to move them, and the next step was
the partial volunteer system when
a scattering of full-time paid men
were stationed In each engine house,
the engineer and drivers of each
gteamer company, and the rest of the
crew composed of residents of the
neighborhood whe were on a partial-
pay plan, answering alarms and get-
ting paid for that In addition to the
sum allowed for their being ready at
all times, Someo of the hand engines
were yst in service, but it was soon
found that as Portland began to get
‘more than 30,000 population it was
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ter grade of equipment with tha re-
sult that tHe most modern machinery
was installed. The main reason for
the Installation of this grade of fire-
fighting tools on a full-paid basis
was that the costly apparatus de-
teriornted rapidly when not geiting
ths proper amount of care, and then

Il was neceéssary o have traiifed
horses for the engines and they ne-
cessitated the attention of a full
crew.

The transition from then on has
been gradual, With the great in-
vrease in popdlation and wealth of
the city it has been necessary to add
to the department and Portland has
always been one clty in the country

that hues kept pace with the lmprove-
ments in this direction. The depart-
ment of today is far removed from
that of the olden days with a double
platoon system and full motorized ap-
paratus ns well as the fast boats an
the river and the up-to-the-minute
alarm system. The old city nlarm, or
town bell, was installed in a tower of
the bullding, now abandoned atl
Fourth and Yamhli!l streets, and after
that came a siren placed at the Inman-
FPoulsen mil The first town bell
came here [n 1858, and weighed 1040

pounds, It coxt the city $5182 and
freight and came into use with the
first start of the Portland depart-

ment in 1855, when It was really first
recognized. The big town bell with
which so many of the Portianders of
today are familinr and that was In
the Fourth and Yamhill-street tower
weighed 4067 pounds with the strik-
ing apparatus and cost the city $3000.

The Oregonlan Leads Fight.

As has_been Lhe history of Portland
gince its inception The Oregonian led
in the campaign to obtain for the
city an efficient fire department in
1853. At this time Thomaa J. Dryer
was editor of the puper and he came
out and emphasized the need for
adequate protection. As hns been
usual the paper echoed the sentiment
of the city and the formatlon of the
department was but a matter of a
short time and it was placed on a
firm basis. Tom Dryer showed how
the mniggardly policy of the city
dads hurt.

The story of the famed fire of
15873 that swept most of the city of
Portland as It then stood, is a thrill-
ing one, much of the tale being
gleaned from information on file In
the archives of the Oregon Historical
soclety. This fire resulted in the in-
stallation of heavy steamers In most
of the engine companies of that day.
The fire started In the early morning
and soon reached the proportions of
a holocaust as It was fanned by a
brisk wind and driven south from (ts
place of slart near the St. Charles
hotel. Portland of that day was &
city with many flimey structures,
many of the stores being of highly
inflammable construction with paper
or cioth lined partitions. In previous
years there had been a number of
costly blazes, but the onme of 1873
was mainly memorable for its great
spread and the magnificent spirit of
help that was shown by the sur-
rounding cities and towns. Vancouver
wig almost the first to respond and
the little steamer Oneatta brought an
engine company and 60 men from
there in 72 minutes, some time and
seldom duplicated by the same route
even today.

Call Is ¥Made for Help.

By noon of the day of the fire the
men of Portland were exhausted and
the call went out to the surrounding
cities for help, “Send fresh men,
ours are exhausted,” was ths appeal
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that met with such ready answar. A

sent two engines and hose carts and
Hubburd and Gervals sent every able-
bodied man to ald thelr blg sister
city. The Oregon Clity Weoolen milla
shut down and W. H, Callicott, a
feariess vyoung railroad sngineer of
those days, sat at the throttle of a
plekup train that made the trip from
the Willamette Falls metropolis here

in 52% minutes, a4 record, and shame
be it sald for Pertland, for, according
to the records of thiat day he was
not even rewarded with o vote of
thanks. What a comeback for Ore-

gon City of today in the Iante discus-

slon that arose over the sending of
Portland apparatus there to fight
their last big fire. When the 1873

tire here was finally stopped It was
found that jt had completely de-
stroyed the district from Morrison to
Jefferson streets along the river and
along Madison street as far west as
Second street. It was a hard blow
to the struggling little city of that
day, but it marked the real inception
of rigid fire-Inspection laws and of a
better equipped department.

Charles H. Dodd, who now lives on
First strect near Grant, is possibly
the oldest living firecman in the city.
He was a member of the department
in the old volunteer days and knows
what §t means to bend his back over
the brakes of the heavy pumps. Ount
at Tigard llves W, B. Spencer, also
one of the old boys: and this coupls
are the realg old-timers of the city
department. Portland, in common
with other cities in the old days of
the volunteers, recognized the fact
that some little reward out of the
ordinary was due these men who did
so much for the protection of life
and property, and the exempt fire-
men's list was early established here.
Thls honor, when granted, excused
the men from jury duty and from =&
certain proportion of their personal
or poll tax. The rirst men to be so
honored in Portland wers given a
vote of thanks by the city in 1864,
and their certificates. On this list are
found:

William Beck, William McMtilan,
Harry Seymour, J. C. Van Renselaer,
D. W. Burnside, Asa Harker, F. Har-
baugh, J. McLaughlin, ¥ J. Northrup.
Shubrick Norrls, 8. M ("Pill”) Smith,
S D. Smith, 8. 8. Siater, C. M. Wiberg
and J. O. Waterman of Willamette
No. 1, and A Davis, Joseph Tucker,
L. M Starr, T. B. Trevett, L. C. Mil-
lurd, 8. G. Skidmore and J. Seller of
Multnomah No. 2. Willlam Baker,
T. J. Holmes, Frank Dekum, C. A
Haas, C. L. Kuhn, M. M. Lucas, A. D,
Fitch, 8. J. MecCormick, Peter Taylor
and Leopold Meyer of Vigilant hook
ang ladder company.

Ladies Honor Fighters.

Up in engine 15's house on Spring
street today are to be found many of
the souvenirs of the old department,
relies that will be cared for by the de-
partment for the ages to come. In
the stand of trophles are fully a dozen
trumpets presented to members of the
department for their meritorious
services in times of danger or in rec-
ognition of their bravery. One of the
most chaste and shcwy of these is an
elaborately engraved silver mega-
phone inscribed “To Couch Engine
Number 6 by Their Friends at the
Catholic Tadies’ Falr, Dec. 5, 1587
What s proud bunch of boys they
must have been when they received
this boon from the fair hands of the
girla of the city, and what rivalry
must have saxisted to bs ths fellow to
handis the trumpet when the company
was in action, or perhaps the foreman
insisted that he be given the use of

are there, a shield from the Brooklyn
volunteers to the Fortland volunteers,
belts worn by notables of the depart-
ment, the old tiger shield of No. b
compeny, and the stuffed owl that
belonged to No. 3, now, alans, with a
wilcked and leering aye looming from
a2 moth-eaten visage. The hall con-
tains many of the membership rolls of
the old companies and presentation
books and other scuvenlrs and is al-
most hallowed ground for the boys
of today, as Dave Campbell's plcture
adorns the wall along with others of
men who hava losi thelr lilves while
at duty.

Bors Want to Be Firemen.

Boys have always found & fascina-
tion about an engine-house and the
lure of the uniform exists even today,
though possibly not to such a great
cxtent as it did when each house was
peopled by the well-trained horses.
The splendld spsactacls of the well-
trained and faithful animals in action,
galloping to a fire, now exists meraly
in the memories of the past, but sach
engine-house in the city yet has [ts
attendant ecrowd of hero worshipers
who gaze longingly at the brass siid-
ing pole leading down from the slecp-
ing quarters and long to be given a
chance to make the slide, feet hooked
about the slender surface in a pro-
fessional attitude.

The story of the earliest day= of the
¢epartiment, of some of the plonesrs
who had a great deal to do with the
Frotection of tha little town of Port-
land over a century ago, is an inter-
esting one, and, fortunately, a fairly
comprehenslve rocord exists in the
files of The Oregonlan and in the
documents of ths historical society.
The first attempt te organize a fire
company in Portland was made In the
spring of 1851. On May 6§ of that year
the old Pioneer company was formed.
Among the 37 charter members were:
A. B. Hallock, J. M. Breck, George H.
Flanders, A. Robert Thompson snd
Dr. R. B. Wilson. This company en-
Joyed but a transitory existence, for
in the annals of this clty no record of

its existende after 1852 has evaer been
found.

First Fire Occurs,

In 1853 thera occurred a small fire
during midsummer which awoke the
people to the necessity of making
arrangements which would
adequate protection. At
the mayor of Portland was Josiah
Fafling. Immediately after the fire
referred to, Mr. Falling took prompt
steps to obtaln the protestion which
to him seemed necessary, and with
the view of effecting a fire organiza-
tion from which satisfactory results
could be expectad., he appointed
Stephen Coffin. Thomas J. Dryer and
I. B. Smith, to act as fire wardens.
Nearly two years after the Pioneser
company was organized, a call was
made to organize a hook-and-ladder
company and to perfect a sysiem
which would provide for efficient
work by tha fire department. This
meeting took place on July 28, 1853,
A resolution was passed which de-
clared the whole clty a district for
the organization of the proposed
hook-and-ladder company, and it was
the sense of the meeting that Port-
land should be divided into two sub-
districts, In each of which should be
formed an efficient engine company.
The dividing line between the two
sub-districts was Washington strest

The result of the meeting was the
organization of Vigilance hook-and-
ladder company No. 1. The first of-
ficers of this company were: 1. B.
Smith, foreman; H. W. Davis, assis-
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members included 36 names. The
company was admitted for duty by
the clity council one day after Its
organization.

Hook-and-Ladder Formed.

The Tfirst headquarters of this
company were on Yamhill street be-
tween First and Second, where they
remained until the memorable fire of
18272 destroyed thelr home, The com-
pany’s first truck consisted of a com-
mon wagon, with the original reach
removed, and the ladder was formed
of long poles made from a tall sapling
split in two parts. With its primitive
apparatus this company did most
effective work, however, and Ifor
many years it was one of the great
companies af the volunteer fire
department.

At the meeting referred to above,
two committess were appointed for
the purposs of completing arrange-
ments for the organization of two
engine companlies, one for the
northern and one for the southern
district of the city. The organization
of the company for the northern dis-
trict was effected on August 1 fol-
lowing, Wwith an enrollment of 652
namex. The first officers were: C. 5.
Silver, foreman; B. Stark, first assis-
tant foreman; D. C. Coleman, second
assistant: Charles Hutchins, secretary
and Justus Steinberger, treasurer.
The first name proposed for the com-
pany wias Protection., At the meet-
ing held on August 8, there was some
little discussion over the final seleec-
tion of a permanent name, Mr. Fall-
ing suggested Caseade: Mr. Barnhart
thought Pike would be suggestive;
and Northernar was offerad by Mr.
Stark. This latter designation was
finally adopted. At this mesting 24
men signed thelr namea to the roll,
which made them members of the
company.

The company, like its predecessors,
had nons of the elements of perm-
anency in its make-up, and in less
than two months after its formation
it was disorganized, not in a formal
way, but as an !mplied agreement on
tha part of its apathetic members.

nt N Lo d

In the southern district, Willamette
engine company No. 1 was organized
on August 6 of the smaime year, with
the following officers: Neeson Ham,
foreman; David Monastes, first assis-
tant: Asa Strong, second assistant:
A. M. Berry, secretary, and C, E.
Williams, treasurer. This company
contalned among its active members
many men who have since become
prominent in Portland's affalrs.
Among these may be mentioned C, H.
Lowis, Willlam S. Ladd, Henry Fall-
Ing, George H. Willimas, R. B. Knapp
and M. S. Burrell. These gentlemen
served in the department for many
years. and the ald and support they
rendered the old fire department was
of incalculable benefit to the city.
The same interest these gentlemen
always took in their private affairs
was devoted unselfishly to the affairs
of the fire department Willamette
engine company was admitted by an
act of the city councll passed July 7.
1854,

On June 80, 1855, the council au-
thorized the purchase of one of Smith's
New York machines for the use of the
inenl department. The boys then
dubbed the primitive fire pumps ‘pla-
no boxes" On August 2, 1856, the
souncil passed a resplution which
awarded this engine to Willamette
eompany. It had been shipped to Port-
land via Cape Horn, and it was un-
loaded at the town wharf eight days
after It had been awarded to the Wil-
Iamettes by the council. This was
Portland's first fire engine owned by
the city. Two engines had been
brought here before this time, how-
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ware In charge of P. A. Marquam. One
of the engines was subsequently
loaned to the Northern firs conipany
on lisx organization. The other was
purchased by G. W. Vaughn and was
loaned to the Willamette fire com-
pany. The vicissitudes of the Vaughn
engine carried it to the temporary
use of Multnomah engine company,
afterward organized In Portland, and
finally to the fire department of Eu-
gene, whera It dld most efficient serv-
ice for many Years.

Multnomah Company Formed.

The next fire company organized in
Fortland was the Multnomah engine
company No. 2. The first enrocliment
llst of 56 namex was closed August
26, 1856. TFour days later the com-
pany's firet meeting was held. B, F.
Goodwin was made chalrman of the
meeting and T. B. Trevett was ap-
pointed secretary. Twenty-nine men
enrolled their names as memboers of
the company, and the following offi-
cers were elected: B. ¥F. Goodwin,
foreman; L. M. Starr, first assistant:
David Monnastes, second assistant;
A. M. Starr, president; A. C. Ripley,
secretary. and Thomas A. Davis, treas-
urer. The city council passed an ordi-
nance admitting this company on No-
vember 25 of the yveaar of its organ-
ization. Multnomah Neo. 2 was an in-
dependent company, its equipment
huving been purchased with money
obtalnéd by popular subscription.

The engine for this company ar-
rived from New York In November,
1867, This company afterward owned
the first steam {fire engine placed in
service on the coast. It wad a Slisby
rotary and was purchased at Seneca
Falls, N. Y., and shipped Lo Portland
by way of the Horn. It reached Port-
land In 1868, just In time to be made
available for the big Stitzel mill fire,
It was In constant service for an en-
tire week at that time in the endea-
vor made by the fire department to
extinguish the smoldering fire in the
sawdust, which had started from the
fire In the mill. This is the engine
now at No. 15's house.

One of the early presidents of Mult-
nomah engine company No. 2 was
Josiah Falling. Among the other|

prominent members were A. B. Hul-
lock, Thomas A. Davis, Archle Will-
iams and T. B. Trevett. Mr. Trevett
was the last of the charter members
of this company on the company's
rolls when the pnid department was
organized. He saw 26 years and three
months' continuous service with the
company.

On May 22, 1854, the councll passed
an ordinance organizing ths Portland
fire departmant. Tha first chief engi-
neer of the department was H W
Dsavis, who drew 3300 a ysar salary.
Shubrick Norris was assistant. In
1555, at an electlon held for the chief
and assistanlt of the Portland fire
department, the first officers were
re-elected. Tn September, 1856, Davis
was again the successful candldate
for the positlon of chief, and Orin
Joyne was made assistant. At the
election in the following year the
successful contestants for the respect-
ive offices of chief engineer and as-
sistant were B. J. MecCormick and
Charles Hutchins. During Mr, McCor-
mick's Incumbency he was absent In
the east for several monthes and dur-
ing his absence the council declared
his office vacant and A. M. Starr was
appeointed to fill tha wacancy. Mr,
a|Starr, however. had been elected may
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an chief englneer of the local depart-
ment. On Aprit 13, 1558, the assist-
ant, Charles Hutlchins, was elected
chief. When Mr. McCormick agaln re-

turned to Portland he was eclacted to
the office of assistant of the fire de-
partment. ¥For many years this gen-
tleman was & bookszeller and publish-
ar here, but he afterward romoved to
San Franclsco, where he was editor of
the Catholic Monitor.

In 1857 thae fire department
was reorganized as the result of &
epecial ordinance passed by the city
council on September 24 of that year.
Under the terms of this ordinance
Willamette engine company No. 1,
Multnomah engine company No, 2 and
Vigilance hock-and-ladder company
No. 1 wera inciuded in the depart-
ment. The totial mumbser of men en-
rolled in the department at that time
was 1587,

In June, 185%, the department was
strengthened by the organization of
Columbia engine company No. 3. Thia
company elected the following offi-
cers: ¥F. Carter, foreman; C. Devine,
first assistant; William Cook, second
assistan Georga Porter, president:
Thos. Neally, secrotary, and E. E.
Kelly, traasurer. The engine used by
this company was what was known
s a Jeffer's slde-stroke. This Is the
pump now at Spring street. In addi-

local

tien. the company owned a hose car-
riage, which carried mearly 1000 feet
of an excellent quality of hose. The

engine house and the headquarters of
the company were on Washington
street, between Second and Third.
Columbia engine company No. 3 waa
the first of the Portland fire coms-
panies to uese horscs. These horses
were purchased by the company, who
algo stood the entlre expense of their
care. When the old department was
disbanded, Columbia had a consider-

able sum of money in the treasury.
With this money the company voted
the endowment of n bed In each of
Portland's large hospitals, Good
Samaritan and St. Vincents, and the

s on hand were

remainder of the fur
contributed to the Exempt Firemen's
provide for the care
iremen's burial plot

association, to
of the Vo
at Lone Fir cemetary.
The rapid growth of Portland soon
¢ formution of another
and on November 13,
gine company NoO.

teer &

demanded th
compa

1882, Protec
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4 was organized and promptly ad-
mitted to the department by the city
council. The following were the first

officers of this company: R. Hendry,
foreman; H. Bullough, first assistant:
J. Byrnes, second assistant; A. Rosen-

heim, gpresident; W. T. Patterson,
secretary and John B. Miller, trea-
Burer.

This was the lasi fire company

organized in Fortiand until February
18, 1873, when Tiger company No. &
was fnrme-:!. The great fire of De-
comber 22, 1873, has awakened the
people of Fortiand to the necessity
of affording additional protection to
the city and it was this which led to
the organization of the above com-
pany. The first enrollment af Tiger
company included 53 names. Thao last
fire company erganized under the old
teer fire department was Couch

volun

engina company No. &, which wan
formad in 1580, with a total mﬂmher-l
ship of 35,

Today the FPortland fire depart-
ment is on a firm foundation and has
the pick of the clty's manhood. Dou-
ble piatoons, comfortable houses, mod-
ern equipment, all go to make the lot
of the firefighter of today a much
different one from that of the boys
who wolunteered in the long ago. Es-
pecially is this so in the maftter of
training, though none of the old-
timers will admit that thay were in
any way Inferior tg the men whao
wear the city blue now.

The fully-trained man who takes up
tira-fighting as & profession in thess
days has a hard row to hoe. Ha has
to pass the most rigid of physical and
mental examinations, and there s al-
ways the keenest of competition at
the trials when the new membars of
the department are chosen.

Though the men of clden days were
skilled enough and just as daring as
are the members of the depirtment
at this time, they did not havs to cope
with the difficulties that beset thelr
succesgors. The huge bulldings, the
traffic-crowded streets, the heavy ap-
paratus, all call for a reat degres of
training and professional skill, The
1620 department is the outgrowth of
the volunteer department of 1851 and
resulted from natural pm a8
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